21 Keys to DeFi Ecosystem

Master the essentials of Decentralized Finance (DeFi) Ecosystem.



Contents

1.	Aave	3
2.	AMM (Automated Market Maker)	5
3.	Compound	6
4.	Curve Finance	7
5.	Decentralized Lending	9
6.	DeFi	11
7.	DEX	13
8.	Ethena USDe	14
9.	Flash Loan	16
10.	Gnosis Safe	17
11.	Hyperliquid	19
12.	Liquidity Provider and LP Token	21
13.	MakerDAO (Sky Lending)	22
14.	Morpho	24
15.	Pendle	26
16.	Perp DEX	28
17.	Stablecoin	30
18.	Stablecoin (Decentralized)	31
19.	TVL (Total Value Locked)	33
20.	Uniswap	35
21.	Yield Farming in DeFi	37

Aave

A decentralized non-c custodial liquidity protocol for lending and borrowing digital assets on blockchains like Ethereum.

Aave is an open-source DeFi protocol that enables users to supply digital assets to liquidity pools to earn interest or borrow against overcollateralized deposits, operating across 14 networks including Ethereum, Polygon, Avalanche, and Arbitrum as of September 2025. Suppliers receive aTokens—such as aETH for deposited ETH—which accrue interest dynamically based on pool utilization and can be redeemed anytime, with average stablecoin supply APYs on Ethereum around 2-5% over the past year depending on market conditions. Borrowers must deposit collateral worth at least 125-150% of the borrowed amount (e.g., \$1,250 in ETH to borrow \$1,000 in USDC), monitored via a Health Factor metric where values above 1 prevent liquidation; if it drops below 1, collateral is automatically sold to repay the loan, protecting suppliers.

The protocol's AAVE token, with a circulating supply of approximately 15 million tokens and a total supply capped at 16 million, facilitates governance through Aave Improvement Proposals (AIPs), where holders vote on asset listings like adding EURC stablecoin or protocol upgrades, and staking AAVE in the Safety Module to backstop shortfalls, earning rewards up to 5-10% APY. Aave pioneered flash loans in 2020, allowing uncollateralized borrowing up to millions in a single transaction for arbitrage or swaps, with over \$10 billion in cumulative flash loan volume executed by mid-2025, though they carry risks like failed executions incurring gas fees. Its native GHO stablecoin, overcollateralized by supplied assets, has seen \$200 million minted in the past year, maintaining 150-200% collateralization ratios.

Security is bolstered by over 50 audits from firms like Trail of Bits, a \$25 million bug bounty program, and the Shortfall Secured mechanism using staked AAVE to cover insolvency, with no major exploits since a \$24 million insurance fund payout in 2023. Total value locked (TVL) stands at over \$12 billion as of September 2025, processing billions in weekly volume, making it the largest DeFi lending protocol by TVL and supporting over 30 digital assets including USDT, USDC, WBTC, and LINK.

AMM (Automated Market Maker)

A protocol that uses liquidity pools and algorithms to facilitate decentralized trading of digital assets.

An Automated Market Maker (AMM) is a decentralized protocol that enables the trading of digital assets without traditional order books, relying instead on liquidity pools and mathematical formulas to set prices. AMMs are integral to decentralized exchanges (DEXs) like Uniswap, SushiSwap, and PancakeSwap, operating on blockchains such as Ethereum, Solana, and Binance Smart Chain. Liquidity providers deposit pairs of assets (e.g., ETH/USDT) into pools, and trades are executed against these pools, with prices determined by formulas like the constant product model (x * y = k), ensuring continuous liquidity.

AMMs eliminate intermediaries by automating trades through smart contracts, allowing anyone to trade or provide liquidity permissionlessly. For example, Uniswap's AMM adjusts prices based on the ratio of assets in a pool, incentivizing arbitrageurs to balance it. Liquidity providers earn fees (e.g., 0.3% per trade on Uniswap V2) but face risks like impermanent loss, where price divergence reduces returns. AMMs have transformed DeFi by enabling efficient, 24/7 trading with low barriers to entry, handling billions in trading volume—Uniswap alone processed over \$1 trillion cumulatively by 2025.

Key features include accessibility, as anyone can participate, and flexibility, supporting various asset pairs. However, challenges like high gas fees on Ethereum or slippage during volatile markets persist. Tools like Dune Analytics or DeFi Pulse can track AMM performance and pool metrics for informed decision-making.

Compound

A decentralized finance (DeFi) protocol that enables lending and borrowing of digital assets through algorithmically managed interest rate markets.

Compound is a decentralized protocol built on Ethereum, launched in 2018, that allows users to lend and borrow digital assets like ETH, USDC, and DAI directly from their wallets without intermediaries. It operates using smart contracts to create money markets—pools of assets where interest rates are determined algorithmically based on supply and demand. Lenders deposit assets to earn interest, while borrowers can access these assets by posting collateral, with rates typically ranging from 0.5% to 10% annually, depending on the asset and market conditions. As of September 2025, Compound's total value locked (TVL) is approximately \$1.93 billion, making it a significant player in DeFi, though it trails behind newer protocols like Aave in market share.

The protocol's native digital asset, COMP, is a governance token that allows holders to vote on protocol upgrades, such as adding new markets or adjusting parameters. Compound's third iteration, Compound III (deployed in 2022), introduced a more capital-efficient model with isolated markets, reducing systemic risk by limiting cross-asset liquidations. Users interact with Compound through its web interface or integrated platforms like MetaMask, and it supports over 20 digital assets, including stablecoins and wrapped tokens. Despite its innovation, Compound has faced challenges, including governance disputes and exploits like the 2020 "yield farming" frenzy, which highlighted vulnerabilities in its economic model. Its open-source nature has also inspired forks like Aave and Cream Finance.

Curve Finance

Curve Finance is a decentralized exchange on Ethereum and compatible chains, optimized for low-slippage swaps of stablecoins and wrapped assets using bonding curve algorithms.

Curve Finance, launched in January 2020, is an automated market maker (AMM) protocol that facilitates efficient trading of digital assets like stablecoins (e.g., USDC, DAI, USDT) and liquid staking tokens (e.g., stETH) through liquidity pools governed by a specialized bonding curve. This design minimizes slippage and fees—typically 0.04% for stablecoin trades—making it ideal for large-volume swaps compared to general-purpose DEXs like Uniswap. Liquidity providers deposit assets into pools, earning trading fees and CRV token emissions as incentives; for instance, the 3pool (DAI/USDC/USDT) has historically generated 2-5% APY from fees alone, with veCRV lockers boosting yields up to 20% via vote-escrowed governance.

As of September 2025, Curve's total value locked (TVL) stands at approximately \$2.2 billion, distributed across over 20 chains including Ethereum (\$1.1B), Arbitrum (\$450M), and Optimism (\$300M), per DeFiLlama aggregates. Weekly trading volume averages \$1.5 billion, driven by stablecoin pairs and crvUSD integrations, with Q1 2025 marking a record \$35 billion quarterly volume amid 5.5 million transactions—a 13% YoY increase despite market downturns. The protocol's native CRV token (\$0.35, \$450M market cap) enables governance via the Curve DAO, where locking CRV as veCRR directs emissions and fees; recent upgrades include the Llamalend lending UI rollout in June 2025, FXSwap for cross-asset trades, and the Curve Block Oracle

for multichain messaging, pushing crvUSD supply to \$150M and TAC deployments to \$30M TVL.

Curve has weathered exploits, like the \$70M liquidity drain in July 2023 tied to Vyper compiler flaws, but recovered via insurance and audits, maintaining 1.9 million active users in Q2 2025. Innovations such as the Peg Stabilization Reserve for frxUSD/crvUSD pools and YieldBasis to mitigate impermanent loss underscore its evolution, with projections for \$3B TVL by year-end amid RWA integrations like BlackRock's BUIDL fund.

Decentralized Lending

Decentralized lending is a blockchain-based system allowing users to lend or borrow digital assets without intermediaries, using smart contracts to automate and secure transactions.

Decentralized lending, often facilitated by decentralized finance (DeFi) protocols, enables users to lend digital assets to earn interest or borrow assets by providing collateral, all managed by smart contracts on blockchains like Ethereum, Binance Smart Chain, or Solana. Unlike traditional lending, which relies on banks or centralized platforms, decentralized lending operates without intermediaries, offering permissionless access and transparency. Users interact directly through wallets like MetaMask, depositing assets into liquidity pools or borrowing against over-collateralized positions to mitigate default risks.

Leading platforms include Aave, Compound, and MakerDAO on Ethereum, with Aave alone managing over \$12 billion in total value locked (TVL) as of September 2025, per DeFiLlama data. Lenders earn variable or stable interest rates (e.g., 2-10% APY on stablecoins like USDC), while borrowers provide collateral, typically 150-200% of the loan value, to secure loans. For example, MakerDAO's DAI stablecoin allows users to borrow against ETH or other assets, with over \$5 billion in DAI minted historically. Protocols like Venus on Binance Smart Chain and Benqi on Avalanche also support lending, with Benqi hitting \$1.2 billion TVL in 2025. Risks include smart contract vulnerabilities—exploits cost DeFi \$3.7 billion from 2020-2024—and liquidation if collateral values drop below loan thresholds, as seen in Aave's \$1.7 million bad debt event in 2022.

Decentralized lending has grown significantly, with the sector's TVL reaching \$50 billion in Q3 2025, driven by low-cost chains

and cross-chain interoperability. Innovations like flash loans, which allow uncollateralized borrowing within a single transaction, and yield farming integrations boost returns but add complexity. Despite scalability challenges and regulatory scrutiny, decentralized lending continues to disrupt traditional finance by offering global access and competitive rates.

DeFi

Decentralized Finance (DeFi) refers to financial applications built on a blockchain that operate without centralized intermediaries, using smart contracts to enable trustless lending, borrowing, trading, and more.

Decentralized Finance (DeFi) on Ethereum is a category of blockchain-based applications that leverage Ethereum's smart contract functionality to provide financial services—such as lending, borrowing, trading, and yield farming—without traditional intermediaries like banks or brokers. DeFi protocols run on Ethereum's decentralized network, utilizing open-source code and transparent, immutable smart contracts to automate transactions, ensuring trustlessness and permissionless access.

As of 2025, Ethereum hosts over 90% of the DeFi ecosystem's total value locked (TVL), amounting to approximately \$150 billion across thousands of protocols, making it the dominant blockchain for DeFi. Key DeFi applications on Ethereum include decentralized exchanges (DEXs) like Uniswap; lending platforms like Aave; and stablecoin protocols like Sky(formerly MakerDAO), which issues DAI, a decentralized stablecoin pegged to the USD with over \$10 billion in circulation.

Despite its dominance, DeFi on Ethereum faces challenges, including smart contract vulnerabilities—exploits have caused over \$3 billion in losses since 2020—and layer-2 fragmentation, which can silo liquidity. However, innovations like account abstraction and cross-rollup bridges are improving user experience and interoperability. Ethereum's DeFi ecosystem continues to lead due to its robust developer community, open governance, and infrastructure, with platforms like Curve

optimizing yield generation and liquidity provision, solidifying Ethereum's role as the backbone of decentralized finance.

DEX

A decentralized exchange (DEX) is a platform for trading digital assets directly between users on a blockchain without intermediaries.

A decentralized exchange (DEX) enables peer-to-peer trading of digital assets, such as tokens or coins, on a blockchain without relying on a central authority like a traditional exchange (e.g., Coinbase or Binance). DEXs operate using smart contracts, which are self-executing programs that automate trade settlement, ensuring trustless and transparent transactions. Users retain control of their funds through their own wallets, reducing risks associated with centralized custody, such as hacks or mismanagement.

DEXs typically use automated market makers (AMMs) or order book models. AMMs, like those used by Uniswap or SushiSwap on Ethereum, rely on liquidity pools where users provide assets to facilitate trades, earning fees in return. Order book DEXs, like Serum on Solana, match buy and sell orders directly on-chain. Examples include PancakeSwap (Binance Smart Chain), Curve Finance (Ethereum), and Raydium (Solana). According to DeFi Pulse, as of September 2025, DEXs have facilitated billions in trading volume, with Uniswap alone handling over \$1.5 trillion historically. However, DEXs face challenges like higher transaction fees during network congestion and potential front-running by miners or validators.

Ethena USDe

A synthetic digital dollar stable asset on Ethereum, backed by hedged collateral to maintain a \$1 peg while generating yield for holders.

Ethena USDe is a crypto-native synthetic stable asset issued by the Ethena protocol on Ethereum, designed to provide a scalable, censorship-resistant alternative to traditional fiat-backed stablecoins like USDT or USDC. Launched in February 2024, USDe maintains its \$1 peg through a delta-neutral hedging strategy: it is backed by staked Ethereum (stETH), Bitcoin (BTC), and other digital assets collateralized at over 150% ratios, paired with short perpetual futures positions on centralized and decentralized exchanges to offset price volatility. This mechanism allows USDe to generate yield from staking rewards and funding rates, with an average APY of around 7.54% as of September 2025, distributed without reliance on banking infrastructure. Users can mint USDe by depositing approved collateral via the Ethena app or integrated DEXs, and redeem it for underlying assets at any time.

The protocol's staked variant, sUSDe, enables holders to earn the full yield on USDe reserves, which include over \$500 million in cumulative interest revenue generated since inception. As of September 21, 2025, USDe has a circulating supply exceeding \$13 billion, with a market cap of approximately \$13 billion, making it the third-largest USD-pegged digital asset behind USDT (\$164 billion) and USDC (\$63 billion). Ethena's total value locked (TVL) stands at \$14.209 billion, up from \$10 billion in August, driven by institutional integrations like custody with Anchorage Digital and trading support on Binance, which listed USDe against USDC and USDT on September 9, 2025. Recent backing from YZi Labs

(formerly Binance Labs) has accelerated adoption, with over \$30 million in rewards distributed in the past 30 days.

Despite its growth, USDe carries risks including basis risk from funding rate volatility (potentially leading to depegging during prolonged negative rates), smart contract vulnerabilities, and regulatory scrutiny—such as Germany's BaFin ordering Ethena GmbH to cease operations in April 2025 over MiCA compliance. Ethena mitigates these through third-party attestations, diversified collateral (now including BTC and major stablecoins), and a 2025 roadmap featuring iUSDe for TradFi with 20% APY targets and \$10 billion inflow goals via partnerships like FalconX.

Flash Loan

A type of uncollateralized loan in decentralized finance (DeFi) that is borrowed and repaid within a single blockchain transaction.

A flash loan is a unique feature of decentralized finance (DeFi) protocols, primarily on Ethereum, allowing users to borrow large amounts of digital assets without collateral, provided the loan is repaid within the same blockchain transaction. If the repayment (including fees) isn't completed, the transaction is reversed, ensuring no risk to the lender. Flash loans are enabled by smart contracts on platforms like Aave, dYdX, or Uniswap, leveraging the atomic nature of blockchain transactions where all actions (borrowing, using, and repaying) occur simultaneously.

These loans are commonly used for arbitrage, where traders exploit price differences across decentralized exchanges (e.g., borrowing USDT to buy ETH at a lower price on one exchange and sell it higher on another), collateral swaps, or liquidating undercollateralized positions in DeFi protocols. For example, a user might borrow \$1 million in DAI, execute a profitable trade, and repay the loan with a small fee (e.g., 0.09% on Aave) in one transaction. Flash loans require technical expertise, as users must deploy smart contracts to automate the process, and any error can lead to transaction failure.

While flash loans democratize access to large capital for DeFi strategies, they've also been exploited in attacks, such as manipulating oracle prices to drain protocol funds. Discussions on X often highlight both their innovative potential and risks, with users sharing examples of profitable trades or cautioning about vulnerabilities in DeFi systems.

Gnosis Safe

A multi-signature smart contract wallet on Ethereum for secure, shared management of digital assets with customizable approval thresholds and recovery options.

Gnosis Safe, rebranded as Safe in 2023, is an open-source smart contract platform launched in 2016 by Gnosis that enables users to create programmable wallets requiring multiple approvals for transactions, supporting up to 15 owners with thresholds like 2-of-3 signatures. Deployed on Ethereum and 20+ EVM-compatible chains including Gnosis Chain, Polygon, and Conflux eSpace, it secures over \$100 billion in digital assets as of September 2025, with formal verification of core contracts ensuring bug-free operation. Users interact via the Safe Wallet app or web interface, integrating with MetaMask, Ledger hardware wallets, and DeFi protocols like Uniswap and Aave for gasless batch transactions and ENS naming.

Safe's architecture uses deterministic deployment for consistent addresses across networks, with modules for extensions like account abstraction (ERC-4337) and social recovery via guardians. It supports ETH, ERC-20 tokens, and ERC-721 NFTs, with features like transaction simulation to preview outcomes before signing. The protocol's SafeDAO governs development, holding 55% of the SAFE token supply (total 1 billion, circulating 400 million at \$1.20 USD, market cap \$480 million as of September 21, 2025), used for voting on upgrades and fee distribution from premium services. Recent 2025 updates include the SafeBoost program on Gnosis Chain, rewarding users with points based on transaction volume and asset holdings (up to \$10,000 monthly incentives, ending October 20), and Safe Watch Agent for real-time threat monitoring launched in June.

Despite its robustness, Safe has faced challenges like a 2022 UI phishing exploit affecting \$35 million (mitigated by no fund loss via smart contracts) and gas optimization needs on high-fee layers, addressed through Layer-2 deployments and audited code from Trail of Bits. It powers treasuries for DAOs like MakerDAO and funds like a16z, with over 1 million Safes created and \$50 billion in annual transaction volume.

Hyperliquid

A high-performance Layer-1 blockchain and decentralized exchange (DEX) optimized for perpetual futures trading of digital assets with on-chain order books.

Hyperliquid is a Layer-1 blockchain designed specifically for decentralized finance (DeFi), featuring a custom consensus mechanism called HyperBFT—a variant of HotStuff—that enables sub-second block times and throughput of up to 200,000 orders per second on its mainnet. Launched in late 2023, it supports fully on-chain order books for spot and perpetual trading, eliminating gas fees for trades while charging minimal maker (0.01%) and taker (0.035%) fees. Users can trade over 130 digital assets with leverage up to 50x, and the platform integrates HyperEVM for Ethereum-compatible smart contracts, allowing developers to build apps that leverage its native liquidity primitives. As of September 2025, Hyperliquid's total value locked (TVL) stands at approximately \$2.68 billion, representing 1.81% dominance in the DeFi ecosystem.

The platform's native digital asset, HYPE, powers governance, staking for network security, and fee discounts, with a deflationary tokenomics model that includes buybacks and burns from trading fees. Hyperliquid was launched via an airdrop in 2024 to early users and contributors, and it currently operates with 16 validators for enhanced performance, though this has drawn criticism for relative centralization compared to chains like Ethereum. Recent integrations, such as with aggregators like VOOI for gasless cross-DEX trading, and community-driven features like 3x leverage on assets such as \$STBL, highlight its focus on user-friendly, high-speed trading without sacrificing self-custody.

Hyperliquid differentiates itself by prioritizing financial primitives over general-purpose computing, achieving median end-to-end latency of 0.2 seconds (99th percentile at 0.9 seconds), making it suitable for high-frequency trading strategies in digital assets like SOL, BTC, and ETH perpetuals.

Liquidity Provider and LP Token

Entities supplying assets to DeFi pools for trading, receiving LP tokens as receipts for proportional rewards.

Liquidity Providers (LPs) deposit equal-value token pairs into Automated Market Makers (AMMs) like Uniswap, enabling swaps and earning 0.3% fees—e.g., \$10 billion daily volume yields \$30 million rewards. LPs' risks include smart contract hacks (\$3 billion lost 2020-2024).

LP Tokens represent shares, redeemable for principal plus fees, with 50% of DeFi TVL from LPs in 2025. Tokens act as collateral for lending or staking, but impermanent loss erodes value if prices diverge—e.g., 5% ETH-USDC imbalance costs 2%.

MakerDAO (Sky Lending)

A decentralized lending protocol on Ethereum that enables users to lock digital assets as collateral to mint the USDS stablecoin, now operating as the Sky ecosystem with upgraded governance and yield features.

MakerDAO, launched in 2014 on Ethereum, pioneered decentralized lending by allowing users to create collateralized debt positions (CDPs), now called Vaults, where they deposit digital assets like ETH or WBTC to mint the overcollateralized USDS stablecoin (upgraded from DAI at a 1:1 ratio) against them, typically at 110-150% collateralization ratios. Borrowers pay stability fees of 0.5-5% annually, while the protocol auctions excess collateral during liquidations if ratios drop below thresholds. As of September 21, 2025, the Sky protocol's total value locked (TVL) exceeds \$17.35 billion across 20+ collateral types, including \$1.2 billion in real-world assets (RWAs) like U.S. Treasuries, with USDS circulating supply at approximately \$8.4 billion and over 634,797 active users.

Rebranded to Sky in September 2024 as part of the "Endgame" plan by co-founder Rune Christensen, the protocol introduced SKY as the upgraded governance token (1 MKR swaps for 24,000 SKY) and restructured into "Sky Stars"—independent subDAOs like SparkLend, which offers 6% yield on USDS deposits and 7% borrow rates on \$2.5 billion TVL. Legacy DAI and MKR remain functional but lack new features like the Sky Savings Rate (SSR) at 4.75% APY for USDS holders and Sky Token Rewards distributing SKY emissions. Governance occurs via the Sky DAO, where SKY holders vote on parameters like fee adjustments, with \$842 million staked in the Staking Engine for amplified voting power up to 2.5x based on lock duration.

Sky differentiates through non-custodial access via the sky.money app, supporting multi-chain deployments on Base and Optimism, and integrations with DEXs for seamless USDS swaps against USDC, ETH, and USDT. Despite a 2020 "Black Thursday" liquidation loss of \$8.3 million from oracle failures, security has improved with Chainlink feeds and 25+ audits, though risks like basis volatility in RWAs persist, mitigated by a \$50 million surplus buffer and diversified collateral. The rebrand faced community backlash, with only 10.7% MKR conversion initially, but a November 2024 vote upheld it with 80% approval from four major entities.

Morpho

A permissionless decentralized lending protocol on Ethereum and Base that optimizes rates by matching lenders and borrowers peer-to-peer atop pools like Aave and Compound.

Morpho is a DeFi lending platform launched in 2022 by Morpho Labs, enabling users to supply and borrow over 50 digital assets across customizable, isolated markets with overcollateralization ratios starting at 110%. It operates in two modes: Morpho Blue for developers to create tailored markets with programmable interest rate models (e.g., Jump Rate Model) and Morpho Vaults for curated, allocator-managed pools that automate yield optimization, offering lenders APYs up to 8% on assets like ETH and USDC. As of September 2025, Morpho's TVL exceeds \$6 billion, with \$2.5 billion in active loans, making it the largest DeFi lender on Base (surpassing Aave) and the second-largest overall behind Aave at \$12 billion TVL.

The native digital asset, MORPHO, with a circulating supply of 100 million and total supply of 1 billion, facilitates governance through the Morpho DAO, where holders vote on parameters like fee switches (currently off, directing 100% of revenue to the treasury) and integrations. Priced at approximately \$3.08 USD with a market cap of \$308 million, MORPHO has seen 25% YTD gains amid expansions to Arbitrum and Optimism, generating \$15 million in monthly fees from borrow interest (0.1-2% annually) and liquidation bonuses. In June 2025, Morpho Labs transitioned to a nonprofit structure under the Morpho Association to prioritize protocol reinvestment over equity returns, holding \$40 million in DAO-controlled tokens for developer incentives.

Morpho differentiates via peer-to-peer matching for 20-50 basis point better rates than base pools, supporting flash loans and isolated risk (no cross-market liquidations), with over 25 audits from firms like Trail of Bits ensuring security—though a March 2025 faulty update briefly paused operations without fund loss. Risks include oracle dependencies (using Chainlink) and market volatility triggering liquidations (e.g., 5% of positions in Q2 2025), mitigated by diversified collateral and a \$50 million insurance fund.

Pendle

A DeFi protocol for tokenizing and trading future yields from digital assets, enabling users to separate principal from yield for fixed-rate strategies and speculation.

Pendle Finance, launched in June 2021 on Ethereum, is a decentralized protocol that tokenizes future yields from yield-bearing digital assets like stETH, USDe, and LBTC, splitting them into Principal Tokens (PTs) for fixed principal redemption and Yield Tokens (YTs) for trading variable future yields on an automated market maker (AMM). Users deposit assets into Pendle pools to mint PTs and YTs, allowing liquidity providers to earn swap fees (10-30 basis points) while traders speculate on yield rates—locking in fixed APYs up to 15% or betting on rises via YTs. As of September 21, 2025, Pendle's TVL exceeds \$10 billion across 20+ markets, including integrations with Ethena (sUSDe), Aave, Morpho, and Lombard Finance (LBTC), representing over 50% market share in the \$14 billion DeFi yield sector and generating \$4-5 million in monthly revenue from 3% yield trading fees.

The native digital asset, PENDLE, with a circulating supply of 168.6 million and total supply of 281.5 million, powers governance via vePENDLE locking (up to 2-year periods for voting and fee shares), emissions (600,000 weekly), and incentives for liquidity providers. Priced at approximately \$4.19 USD with a market cap of \$706 million, PENDLE has seen 45% weekly gains to \$5.60 in August 2025 amid cross-chain expansions to Solana, TON, and HyperEVM via Citadel deployments, unlocking \$14 billion in non-EVM liquidity. Recent milestones include the August 2025 Boros yield-trading platform launch, boosting Arbitrum activity to 1,428 daily addresses, and partnerships like Almanak's alUSD stablecoin (1.25x points

multiplier) and Falcon Finance's USDf integration (\$273 million TVL on Pendle), positioning it for \$15 billion TVL by year-end through RWA tokenization and institutional inflows of \$41 billion.

Pendle's security includes audits from Trail of Bits and OpenZeppelin, with a multifaceted framework addressing past exploits via reactive measures like insurance funds; however, risks include yield volatility (e.g., 60% TVL concentration in Ethena pools) and user complexity in PT/YT mechanics, mitigated by EIP-5115 standardization for interoperability.

Perp DEX

A perp DEX is a decentralized exchange specializing in perpetual futures contracts for digital assets, enabling leveraged, non-expiring trades directly on-chain without intermediaries.

A perp DEX, or perpetual decentralized exchange, allows users to trade perpetual futures—derivative contracts without expiration dates—on blockchain networks, providing leveraged exposure to digital asset prices while maintaining self-custody of funds. These platforms use smart contracts to automate order matching, funding rate settlements, and liquidations, typically via models like virtual automated market makers (vAMMs) or on-chain order books. Traders connect wallets like MetaMask or Phantom to execute trades, avoiding KYC requirements and central custody risks. Leading examples include Hyperliquid on its own L1 chain, dYdX on Cosmos-based dYdX Chain, GMX on Arbitrum and Avalanche, Drift on Solana, and Aster on Hyperliquid, each offering up to 100x leverage on assets like BTC and ETH.

In 2025, perp DEXs have captured 26% of global perpetual futures volume, up from 4-6% in mid-2024, driven by enhanced liquidity and lower fees compared to centralized exchanges (CEXs). For instance, Hyperliquid dominates with over \$15 billion in daily volume and \$10 billion in open interest as of September, holding 75-80% market share among DEXs, while Aster recently hit \$700 million in 24-hour volume and \$390 million TVL. Q1 2025 volumes topped \$158 million daily for Hyperliquid alone, with the sector's monthly volumes reaching \$320 billion by July. Funding rates, paid every 8 hours between long and short positions, keep contract prices aligned with spot markets, and liquidity providers earn fees from trades, though risks like oracle failures or smart

contract exploits persist—dYdX's 2023 front-end hack underscores the need for audits.

These platforms excel in permissionless access and transparency but face challenges like network congestion on chains like Solana and higher slippage during volatility. Adoption surged post-2024 Bitcoin halving, with institutional interest growing; projections estimate the DEX derivatives market at \$3.48 trillion annually by year-end. Tools like one-click trading and cross-chain swaps, as in Perp's Nekodex, are improving UX, positioning perp DEXs as viable CEX alternatives for global traders.

Stablecoin

Stablecoin is designed to maintain stable value by pegging to fiat currencies, commodities, or algorithms to minimize volatility.

A stablecoin is designed to maintain a stable value by pegging to assets like fiat currency (e.g., USD) or commodities(e.g., gold), to minimize volatility for payments, decentralized finance (DeFi), and cross-border transfers. Stablecoin types include fiat-backed (e.g., USDT and USDC, supported by reserves), crypto-backed (over-collateralized), and algorithmic.

In 2025, in the U.S., the GENIUS Act (Guiding Effective Non-Fiat Innovation and Utility for Stablecoins) was passed to establish a tailored regulatory framework for stablecoins. It emphasizing consumer protection, reserve transparency, and financial stability to foster innovation while mitigating risks like de-pegging.

Stablecoin (Decentralized)

A decentralized stablecoin is a digital asset on a blockchain, designed to maintain a stable value, typically pegged to a fiat currency like USD, without relying on a central issuer.

Decentralized stablecoins are blockchain-based tokens that aim to maintain a stable value, often pegged 1:1 to assets like the U.S. dollar, using smart contracts and over-collateralization rather than centralized custodians. Unlike centralized stablecoins like USDT (Tether) or USDC (Circle), which rely on fiat reserves held by companies, decentralized stablecoins are backed by on-chain assets like ETH, BTC, or other tokens, managed by protocols like MakerDAO or Liquity. Users lock collateral in smart contracts to mint these stablecoins, ensuring transparency and reducing counterparty risk.

The most prominent example is DAI, created by MakerDAO on Ethereum, which maintains its \$1 peg through over-collateralized loans (e.g., 150% ETH collateral for DAI minted). As of September 2025, DAI has a market cap of over \$5.4 billion, per CoinMarketCap, with \$9 billion in collateral locked, according to DeFiLlama. Other examples include LUSD (Liquity) on Ethereum, pegged to USD with 110% minimum collateral, and sUSD (Synthetix), backed by SNX tokens. These stablecoins rely on mechanisms like liquidation (selling collateral if it falls below a threshold) and arbitrage to maintain pegs. For instance, DAI's stability fee, a variable interest rate (currently 2-8%), incentivizes repayment or minting to balance supply.

Despite their resilience, decentralized stablecoins face risks like smart contract exploits—MakerDAO patched a \$500 million vulnerability in 2020—and depegging during market crashes, as seen with DAI briefly dropping to \$0.92 in March 2020. Their

adoption has surged, with DeFi protocols integrating them for lending, trading, and yield farming, handling \$100 billion in annual transaction volume in 2025. Innovations like cross-chain bridges (e.g., Wormhole for DAI) and real-world asset collateral (e.g., Centrifuge's tokenized invoices) are expanding utility, though regulatory uncertainty and oracle failures remain challenges.

TVL (Total Value Locked)

The total value of digital assets staked or locked in a decentralized finance (DeFi) protocol or ecosystem, typically measured in USD.

Total Value Locked (TVL) represents the aggregate value of digital assets deposited in a DeFi protocol or across an entire blockchain ecosystem, such as Ethereum or Binance Smart Chain, expressed in a common currency like USD. TVL is a key metric used to gauge the adoption, liquidity, and overall health of DeFi platforms, reflecting the amount of capital actively utilized in activities like lending, borrowing, staking, or providing liquidity in automated market makers (AMMs). For example, assets locked in protocols like Aave, Uniswap, or Lido for lending, trading, or liquid staking contribute to their TVL.

As of September 2025, Ethereum leads with a TVL of approximately \$120 billion across its DeFi ecosystem, per DeFiLlama data, driven by protocols like Lido (over \$40 billion in staked ETH) and MakerDAO. TVL fluctuates with market prices and user activity; for instance, a 20% drop in ETH's price directly reduces the USD value of ETH-based TVL, even if the number of tokens remains constant. High TVL often signals user trust and protocol utility, but it can also attract exploits, as seen in 2022's \$3.7 billion in DeFi hacks reported by Chainalysis. On platforms like X, TVL is frequently cited to compare protocol growth or highlight emerging chains like Solana, with users leveraging tools like DeFiLlama or Dune Analytics to track real-time data.

While TVL is a useful indicator, it's not foolproof—double-counting assets (e.g., tokens used across multiple protocols) or inflated values from volatile prices can skew perceptions.

Investors are advised to cross-reference TVL with metrics like

protocol revenue or user activity for a comprehensive assessment.

Uniswap

Uniswap is a decentralized exchange (DEX) on Ethereum and compatible blockchains, enabling peer-to-peer trading of digital assets through automated market maker (AMM) liquidity pools.

Uniswap is a leading decentralized exchange protocol that facilitates trustless trading of digital assets, primarily ERC-20 tokens, using an AMM model powered by smart contracts. Launched in November 2018 by Hayden Adams, Uniswap allows users to swap tokens directly from their wallets (e.g., MetaMask) without intermediaries, with trades executed against liquidity pools rather than order books. Liquidity providers deposit pairs of assets (e.g., ETH/USDC) into pools, earning fees (0.05% to 1% per trade) proportional to their stake. Uniswap's constant product formula (x * y = k) ensures liquidity and price stability, making it a cornerstone of DeFi.

As of September 2025, Uniswap's total value locked (TVL) is approximately \$5.8 billion across Ethereum, Arbitrum, Polygon, and Optimism, per DeFiLlama, with historical trading volume exceeding \$2 trillion. Uniswap V3, introduced in 2021, dominates with concentrated liquidity, allowing providers to set price ranges for higher capital efficiency; for example, the USDC/ETH 0.3% fee pool generates 5-10% annualized returns during high volatility. The UNI token (\$7.50, \$4.5B market cap, per CoinMarketCap) enables governance, with 1.1 million unique addresses voting in 2025. Uniswap V4, launched in Q2 2025, introduced hooks for customizable pools and on-chain limit orders, boosting weekly volume to \$10B, a 20% increase from Q1. The protocol supports cross-chain swaps via LayerZero and CCIP, with Arbitrum pools handling 30% of volume at sub-cent fees.

Despite its success, Uniswap faces challenges like front-running (MEV extracted \$50M in 2024) and regulatory scrutiny over UNI's governance role. A 2023 V3 pool exploit cost \$8M, mitigated by audits and bug bounties. With 3 million monthly active users and integrations like UniswapX for gasless swaps, Uniswap remains a DeFi leader, projected to hit \$3T cumulative volume by 2026.

Yield Farming in DeFi

Strategy of lending or staking digital assets in DeFi protocols to earn rewards, often compounded.

Yield farming involves depositing assets into pools on platforms like Aave or Compound, earning APYs from fees and tokens—e.g., 10% on USDC yields \$1,000 yearly on \$10,000 stake. Farmers optimize via aggregators like Yearn.finance, auto-shifting to 20%+ pools across chains.

LP farming on Uniswap generates 5-50% from 0.3% swaps, but impermanent loss offsets 20% in volatile pairs; stablecoin farms like Curve yield 2-8% with \$20 billion TVL. Leveraged strategies borrow to amplify (e.g., 3x on \$10k = 30% effective).

\$100 billion DeFi TVL in 2025 hides risks: \$4 billion hacks, rug pulls, and liquidation cascades, yet it democratizes 15% average returns versus 0.5% savings accounts.